CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Dhani Stocks Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Dhani Stocks Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the
vear then ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the “Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (“SAs”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors’
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

(this space has intentionally been left blank)
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; sclection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related sateguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the ‘Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

DSL - Independent auditor’s report — March 31, 2024




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “*Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors” Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company, as detailed in note 36 to the Financial Statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2024,

i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

1v) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identitied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

V) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered-wi
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

vi) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and subsequent to
the year-end.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors” Report under section 197(16) of the
Act:

1) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has paid remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance
with the provisions of and limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section
197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No., 016827N

1l Mukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719
New Delhi, May 16, 2024
UDIN: 240997 19BKHBLOS5178
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Dhani Stocks Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the statement of matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

(i)

(iii)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of
physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which all property. plant and
equipment are verified in a phased manner. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, clause 3(1)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property,
plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the
year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company is a service company and accordingly, it does not hold any inventorics.
Thus, clause 3 (i1) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rupees five
crores in aggregate by banks or financial institutions. However, such loans are secured by
way of negative lien over assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, during the year, the Company has provided
loans in the nature of margin trading facility to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties as follows:

Amount in Rs. lakhs

Loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year 1,00,572.61
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of 8,485.42
above cases

DSL - Independent auditor’s report — March 31, 2024



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Dhani Stocks Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

During the year, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on these is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of loans in the nature of margin
trading facility to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

During the year, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on these is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect
of Margin Trading Facility (“MTF”) loans, as per product design, schedule of repayment
of principal and interest are not stipulated and hence regularity of the same has not been
commented upon.

During the year, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on these is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) There are no loans granted to companies or other parties which are overdue for more
than ninety days.

During the year, the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companics, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on these is not applicable to the
Company.

(e) The Company’s principal business activities involve providing loans in the form of MTF
to its clients. There were no loans granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been
rencwed or extended or fresh loans granted to scttle the overdues of existing loans given to
the same parties. The Company has not granted advances in the nature of loans during the
year to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on this is not applicable to the Company.

(£) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us there are
no loans/advances given during the year in the nature ot loans granted to promoters or
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are
repayable on demand or without specitying any terms or period of repayment. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on this clause is not applicable to the Company.

(this space has intentionally been left blank)

DSL - Independent auditor’s report — March 31, 2024



Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Dhani Stocks Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of loans, to the extent applicable to it. The Company has not entered into any
transactions in respect of investments, security and guarantees covered under section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly. clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)  (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax
and Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has
been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax (“GST™)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, cess and other statutory dues,
as applicable to the Company. have generally been regularly deposited by the Company
with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, cess and
other statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to GST,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs. Value Added Tax or cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited
on account of any dispute, except as below:

Name Nature of | Amount Period to which | Forum where

of the dues the amount relates | dispute is

Statute pending

Income Income Tax Rs. 1.54 lakhs Financial year | Commissioner
Tax  Act, 2012-2013 Income Tax
1961 (Appeals)

Income Income Tax Rs. 26.99 lakhs | Financial year | Commissioner
Tax  Act, 2021-2022 Income Tax
1961 (Appeals)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosgd

any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in ] A-‘l,y

g i . . ‘ gy
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. &
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Dhani Stocks Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xi1)

(xiil)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in the
repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries and does not hold any investment in any
associate or joint venture (as defined in the Act). Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix)(e)
and 3(ix)(f) of the Order are not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the vear. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined
in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xi1) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Dhani Stocks Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(x1v)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xiX)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions related to internal
audit are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xiv) (a) and 3(xiv) (b) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clauses 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not
applicable.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(c) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the
management of the Company, the Group (as detfined in Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the Financial Statements, and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(this space has intentionally been left blank) Chartered
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Dhani Stocks Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

(xx)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no
unspent amount under sub-section (5) of scction 135 of the Act pursuant to any project.
Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

Rahul Mukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719

New Delhi, May 16, 2024

UDIN; 24099719BKHBLOS178
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Dhani Stocks Limited for the year ended March 31, 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Dhani Stocks Limited (*“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) issued by the ICATI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the rehability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and proecedures that:
OPRALS
V) J‘o
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (continued)

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

Rafiul Mukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719
New Delhi, May 16, 2024
UDIN: 24099719BKHBLOS178
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Dhani Stocks Limited
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise staied)

Note
No. As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I. ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 6,007.02 2,606.02
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 4 34,121.35 33,648.44
(c) Receivables
(1) Trade receivables 5 6,932.04 5,714.02
(d) Loans 6 7,594.15 2,234.90
(e) Other financial assets 7 2.643.63 3,288.47
Total Financial assets 57,298.19 47,491.85
(2) Non-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets 8 87.85 87.83
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 9 82494 854.13
(¢) Property, plant and equipment 10A 875.16 516.03
(d) Intangible assets under development 10B - 9.00
(e) Other intangible assets 10C 1,862.35 2,235.32
(f) Right of Use Assets 10D 70.90 90.73
(g) Other non-financial assets 11 1,919.12 1,859.51
Total Non-financial assets 5,640.32 5,652.55
TOTAL ASSETS 62,938.51 53,144.40
II. LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
(1) Financial liabilities
(a) Payables
Trade payables 12
(1) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 7481 -
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro 2113 19.42
enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 13 14,376.00 -
(¢) Finance Lease obligations 14 82.51 99.06
(d) Other financial liabilities 15 13.498.99 11,162.99
Total Financial liabilities 28,053.44 11,281.47
(2) Non-financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 16 43843 203.81
(b) Provisions 17 54981 406.54
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 18 574.35 616.72
Total Non-financial liabilities 1,562.59 1,227.07
(3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 19 1,027.50 1,370.00
(b) Other equity 20 32,294.98 39.265.86
Total Equity 33,322.48 40,635.86
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 62,938.51 53,144.40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of th
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 016827N

oard of Directors

R\M(} il

Rahul Mukl Rhj Kumar Gupta bhishek Jain Sanjana
Partner hote-time Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 099719 DIN: 10055211 DIN: 02391806 Gurugram,16th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024

New Delhi,16th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024
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Dhani Stocks Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

VL
VIL

VIIL

XL

XIL

XL

Revenue from operations
Interest income

Fees and commission income
Net gain on fair value changes
Sale of services

Total revenue from operations

Other income
Total Income (I + II)

Expenses :

Finance costs

Fees and commission expense
Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before exceptional items and tax (IV-I11)
Exceptional items

Profit before tax (V-VI)

Tax expense/(benefit) :

(1) Current tax

(2) Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Profit for the year from continuing operations (VII-VIII)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations

Tax expense of discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations after tax (X-XI)
Profit for the year (IX + XII)

Other comprehensive income

(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Subtotal (A)

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Subtotal (B)

Total Other comprehensive income (A+B)

Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)
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Note
No.

25

26
27
28
29
30
31

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

3,713.69 2,877.82
6,717.41 5,384.96
43.73 4528
475.61 497.71
10,950.44 8,805.77
35931 210,41
11,309.75 9,016.18
349.57 40.20
63831 750.60
90.84 771.91
3,846.92 1,642.70
766.16 738.79
3,416.39 3,047.43
9,108.19 6,991.63
2,201.56 2,024.55
2,201.56 2,024.55
636.88 354.08
(43.43) 20.74
593.45 374.82
1,608.11 1,649.73
1,608.11 1,649.73
(98.96) 47.95
28.82 (13.96)
(70.14) 33.99
(70.14) 33.99
1,537.97 1,683.72




Dhani Stocks Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
XIL Earnings per equity share: 33
(1) Basic (in Rs.) 13.58 12.04
(2) Diluted (in Rs.) 13.58 12.04
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
This is Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N )
a .
b qaid’

Rahul Mukhi j Kumar Gupta bhishek Jain Sanjana
Partner ote-time Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 099719 DIN: 10055211 DIN: 02391806 Gurugram,16th May 2024 Gurugram,16th May 2024

New Delhi,16th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024




Dhani Stocks Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A Cash flow from operating activities :
Net Profit/ (loss) before tax
Adjustments for :

Unwinding of interest income
Net gain on fair value changes
Excess provision for expenses no longer required written back
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Property, plant and equipment (net)
Sundry credit balances written back
Interest expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment due to expected credit loss - trade receivables
Employee share-based payment expense
Provision of gratuity and compensated absences
Impairment due to Expected Credit Loss - Non financial assets
Bad debts / advances written off

Operating Profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Movement in other bank balances
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Loans
Other financial assets
Other non-financial assets
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Other non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Direct taxes paid (net)

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

B Cash flow from investing activities :

Purchase of Property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Redemption of units of mutual funds (net)

Net cash generated from/ (used in) investing activities

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings
Repayment of Borrowings
Buy Back of Equity Shares (including Securities Premium)
Payment of Lease liabilities (including interest on lease liabilities)
Interest paid
Net cash generated from/ (used in) financing activities

Chartered O
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For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

2,201.56 2,024.55
(0.32) (0.42)
(43.73) (45.28)
(220.71) (115.16)
0.06 (6.71)
(103.93) (62.21)
335.10 40.20
766.16 738.79
91.54 80.00
53.66 (135.65)
159.79 45.78
4.08 12.00
(4.78) 679.91
3,238.48 3,255.80
(472.91) 5,516.49
(1,304.78) (2.398.91)
; 68057
(5,359.25) 859.24
645.16 (2,433 .49)
(58.07) 150.77
76.51 (68.37)
2,354.24 (3.804.16)
(115.48) (96.24)
282.27 77.83
(713.83) 1,739.53
(300.84) (257.40)
(1,014.67) 1,482.13
(762.17) @i
14.76 4227
43.73 4528
(703.68) 66.44
14,376.00 -
. (83.01)
(8,905.00) z
(24.05) (2291)
(327.60) (31 45)
5,119.35 (137.37)




Dhani Stocks Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024 (continued)
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
D Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) 3,401.00 1,411.20
E  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,606.02 1,194.82
F  Cash and cash equivalents at the close of the year (D+E) 6,007.02 2,606.02

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Board ofQirectors
Chartered Accountants ‘\
Firm Registrati 0. 016827N ”
- . gag”

Rahul Mukhi Khanna Raj Kumar Gupta hishek Jain Sanjana

Partner Whote-time Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 099719 DIN: 10055211 DIN: 02391806 Gurugram,|6th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2(
New Delhi,16th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024




Dhani Stocks Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts i Rx. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital
(i) Current reporting vear

Balance at the 1 April 2023 Changes in Equity Share Capital |Restated balance at Changes in equity share capital Balance at 31
due to prior period errors the 1 April 2023 during the current year (Refer Note-|March 2024
19)
1,370.00 - 1,370.00 (342.50) 1,027.50
(ii) Previous reporting year
Balance at the 1 April 2022 Changes in Equity Share Capital |Restated balance at  |Changes in equity share capital Balance at 31
due to prior period errors the 1 April 2022 during the current year March 2023
1,370.00 - 1,370.00 - 1,370.00

) Other equity

(i) Current Reporting Year

Reserve and surplus Other component Other Capital
Particulars Share based Retained 55 i Capital reserve s comprehensive | Redemption Total
5 Securities premium of equity i
payment reserve earnings income Reserve
Balance as at 1 April 2023 17.40 5,625.94 32,738.30 820.69 63.53 - - 39,265.86
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - - - - - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the current reporting 17.40 5,625.94 32,738.30 820.69 63.53 - - 39,265.86
year
Addition during the year 53.66 - - - - - 53.66
Utilised for Buy back of own equity shares (Refer Note 19) - - (8,562.50) (8.562.50)
Profit during the year - 1.608.11 - - - (70.14) 1,537.97
Transferred to Capital redemption Reserve - for Buy back of (342.50) 342.50 -
own equity shares
Transferred from other comprehensive income to retained - (70.14) - - - 70.14 -
eamings
Balance as at 31 March 2024 71.06 6,821.41 24,175.80 820.69 63.53 - 32,194.99
(ii) Previous Reporting Year
Reserve and surplus
Other
< . Other component .
Particulars . . Capital reserve 7 comprehensive Total
Share based Retained o i of equity ;
- mwﬂﬁ-.—ﬂ-n_.ﬂm premium mcome
payment reserve earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2022 210.11 3,942.22 32,738.30 820.69 6.47 - 37,717.79
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - - . - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous reporting 210.11 3,942.22 32,738.30 820.69 6.47 - 37,717.79
year
Ad n during the year (135.65) - - - - - (135.65)
Transferred to other component of equity during the year (57.06) - - - 57.06 - 0.00
Profit for the year - 1,649.73 - - - 33.99 1.683.72
- 3399 - - - (33.99) -
Transfer from other comprehensive income to retained eamings
Balance as at 31 March 2023 17.40 5,625.94 32,738.30 820.69 63.53 - 39,265.86

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Bodrd of Directors
Chartered Accoungants
Firm Regigtrati
\ d2yang
i B

Rahul Mukhi shu Khanna i umar Gupta Abhishek Jain Sanjana
Partner Whote-ume Director Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 099719 DIN 10055211 DIN: 02391806 Gurugram, 1 6th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2024

New Delhi. [6th May 2024 Gurugram, 16th May 2( Gurugram, 16th May 2024




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate information:
Dhani Stocks Limited ("the Company") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dhani Services Limited and was incorporated on 30 October 2003 with

CIN:U74999DL.2003PLC 122874, The Company is a corporate member of NSE, BSE, and MCX and provides financial services of equity. derivative, currency and
commodity broking, depository participant services and distribution of financial products.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 44 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 1956 members of the company at their Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 5 January 2009 accorded their approval to change the status of the company from a private limited company to a public limited company.
The Company has since received a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name on conversion to a public limited company from the Registrar
of Companies National Capital Territory of Delhi and Harvana dated 18 February 2009 in respect of the said change. Accordingly the name of the company was
changed from Indiabulls Commedities Private Limited to Indiabulls Commodities Limited.

In accordance with the approval of the members of the Company. at their Extraordinary general meeting held on February 5, 2019 and of the Registrar of
Companies, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Harvana. and pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions, if any. of the Companies
Act. 2013, read with applicable rules made thereunder. new set of Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the Company in accordance with Table A of Schedule 1
of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia modifving sub clause 5 of the erstwhile main object of the MOA, to include main objects related to stock and share broking
and other allied activities, including carryving out the activities of a Depository Participant.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 13 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2013 members of the company at their Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 5 February 2019 accorded their approval to change the name of the company. The Company has since received a fresh certificate of
incorporation consequent upon change of name from the Registrar of Companies National Capital Territory of Delhi and Haryana dated 13 February 2019 in
respect of the said change. Accordingly the name of the company was changed from "Indiabulls Commodities Limited" to "Indiabulls Securities Limited". Further,
the members the company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on August 04. 2020 accorded their approval to change the name of the company from
"Indiabulls Securities Limited” to "Dhani Stocks Limited”. The Company has since received a fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of name
from the Registrar of Companies National Capital Territory of Delhi and Haryana dated August 7, 2020 in respect of the said change. Accordingly the name of the
company was changed from "Indiabulls Securities Limited” to "Dhani Stocks Limited".

The Board of Directors of the Company. at their meeting held on January 31. 2019, granted their approval for the purchase of stock broking business (both cash and
derivative segments) from Indiabulls Ventures Limited, the Holding Company. for an agreed lumpsum consideration. on a going concern basis, by way of slump
sale through a Business Transfer Agreement, subject to the SEBI Regulations and such other approvals. consents. permissions and sanctions as may be necessary.
including but not limited to, from the Securities and Exchange Board of India and / or such other statutory and regulatory authorities as may be necessary

On July 31, 2019, the Company entered into a business transfer agreement (BTA) with Dhani Services Limited. to acquire its securities broking business on slump
sale basis. The business transfer involved transfer of certain assets and liabilities as stated in the BTA on slump sale basis for an agreed consideration of Rs,
34.200.00 lakhs. Pursuant to the above agreement. the necessary resolution passed by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on January 31, 2019 and the
receipt of approvals from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, BSE Limited and the Securities and Exchange Board of India, the business stood
transferred to the Company with effect from February 21, 2020,

2. Summary of Material accounting policies:

i) General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial statements (*financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notitied
under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (as amended) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (as amended) (by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA”)). The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these financial statements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2024 the Statement of Profit and Loss for the
vear ended 31 March 2024, the Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended 31 March 2024 and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended as on that
date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred to as “financial statements”)

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 are authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 16, 2024

ii) Basis of preparation

These financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule 1 (Division 1) of the Companies Act, 2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash
Flows™. The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss. as prescribed in the Schedule 11T to the Act. are
presented by wav of notes forming part of the Financial Statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards.

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee which is the functional currency of the Company.

These financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis. except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period. as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange lor goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2024

2. Summary of material accounting policies: (continued)

iii) Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. For the vear ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
Company.

iv) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management of the Company to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assets and habilities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and future periods are affected.

Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are in respect of impairment of investments, useful lives of property. plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax assets
and fair value measurement of financial instruments. these are discussed below, Keyv sources of estimation of uncertainty in respect of revenue recognition.
employee benefits and provisions and contingent liabilities have been discussed in their respective policies.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration
of recoverable amount of the assets

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrving amount. the impairment loss is accounted for.

Impairment of financial assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration

of recoverable amount of the assets.

Recognition of deferred rax assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized.

Provisions
At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment. changes in facts and legal aspects. the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the
outstanding contingent liabilities. However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Useful lives of properiy. plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property. plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation

expense in future periods.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets. their fair
value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs 1o these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity
risk. credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. The policy has been further
explained under note 2(x),

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2. Summary of material accounting policies: (continued)

v) Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised upon transter of control of promised services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the Company expects to
receive in exchange for those products or services,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration. adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price
concessions and incentives, if any. as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Interest income
Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Brokerage income
Brokerage income is accounted for on the trade date of the transaction. The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to
determine the transaction price.

Comimission income
Commission on mutual funds is recognised on accrual basis.

DE,T)(JS!'IDITI' LTHd II'[ldfﬂ_g accounl maintenance mcome
Depository and trading account maintenance income are recognised on accrual basis and as at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting
date.

Dividend income
Dividend income on equity shares is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is unconditional as at the balance sheet date.

vi) Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains. a lease. That is. if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1.e. the date the underlving asset is available for use), Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for remeasurement of lease labilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease habilities recognized. initial direct cost incurred, and lease pavments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term and estimated useful lives of the assets. If the
ownership of the leased asset transferred to the company at the end of lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of purchase option. depreciation is calculated using

the estimated useful life of assets

(ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease. the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease pavments to be made over the lease term

The lease pavments include fixed pavments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives recetvable. variable lease pavments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payvments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and pavments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option
to terminate. Variable lease pavments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. In calculating the present value of lease payvments. the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date. the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payvments made. In addition. the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured 1f there 1s a modification. a change in the lease term, a change in the lease pavments (e.g.. changes to future pavments resulting from a
change 1n an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. Lease lability and
ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are
considered 1o be low value. Lease pavments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term,

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the

period in which they are earned




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

2. Summary of material accounting policies: (continued)
vii) Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recognised when incurred and have been classified according to their nature.

viii) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the vear. Current and deferred taxes are
recognised in statement of profit and loss. except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. in which case.
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary
differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the vears in which the temporary
differences are expected 10 be received or settled.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, 10 the extent it would be available for set off against
future current income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

ix) Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly atributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial
asset or financial lability

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire. or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Company s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase. to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solelv payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by
hoth collecting contractual cash flows on specitied dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial

assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on
initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2. Summary of material accounting policies: (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received net of direct issue cost.

x) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it 1s
cither not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

xi) Property, plant and equipment
Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use. less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and impairment loss. if any.

Depreciation is provided for property. plant and equipment on a straight line basis so as to expense the cost less residual value over their estimated useful lives
based on a technical evaluation, The estimated useful lives and residual value are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. with the effect of any change in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Type of asset Useful lives
Computers 3 vears

Furniture and fixtures 10 vears

Office equipments S years

Leasehold Improvements Over the period of lease

The residual values. useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use

xiii) Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any. The
cost comprises purchase price. borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use

Intangible assets are amortised from the date when the assets are available for use. The estimated useful life (amortisation period) of the intangible assets is arrived
basis the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefits and is reviewed ate the end of each financial vear and the amortisation period is revised 10 reflect
the change pattern, if any.

The Company had developed a software that is used to enhance the Company’s business operations. Useful life of that software was estimated at four vears basis the
expected economic benefits from the software. However, the Company has reassessed the expected pattern of consumption of economic benefit basis technical
estimate of the software and expect benefits will flow to the Company till 10 vears

Intangible assets wnder development

Intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets under development and are carried at cost. Cost includes
development cost. borrowing costs and other direct expenditure necessary 1o create, produce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. These are recognised as assets when the Company can demonstrate following recognition requirements

* The development costs can be measured reliably:

« The project is technically and commercially feasible:

+ The Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete the project:

+ The Company has the ability 1o use or sell the such intangible asset. and

+ The software will generate probable future economic benefits

Amortisation of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use.

xiii) Impairment

(a) Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses
to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables. the Company has used a practical expedient by computing
the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is
adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the
provision matrix. For all other financial assets. expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount
k on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

equal 1o the life time expected credit losses if the credit
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(b) Non-financial assets

Tangible and intangible assets

Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an
individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) 1s reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

xiv) Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans. the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method. with actuarial valuations being carried out at each
balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding
interest), 1s reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past
service cost, both vested and unvested. is recognised as an expense at the earlier of (a) when the plan amendment or curtailment oceurs; and (b) when the entity
recognises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retirement benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.

(b) Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when emplovees have rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

(¢) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages
ete. and the expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the emplovee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

(d) Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the emplovee renders the related services are
recognised as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months afier the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the balance sheet date.

xv) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the vear. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the years presented.

xvi) Segment reporting:

The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The
operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the
chief operating decision maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

(this space has intentionally been left blank)
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(Al amonnts in Rs. Lakhs unless aothenvise stared)

Note - 10 A
Property, plant and equipment

Furniture and Vehicle Office Computers Leaschold Total

fixtures ipment improvements

Gross block
Balance as at | Apnl 2022 5232 60.22 1.274.76 419,86 1,807.16
Additions 1.00 - - 6.23 - 723
Sales/adjustment (13 67) (11.49) (51.60) (71.85) (148.61)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 39.65 - 48.73 1.229.39 348.01 1.665.78
Addimons - 599.33 051 11.68 - 611.52
Sales/adjustment - - - {50.13) - (50.13)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 39.65 599.33 49.24 1.190.94 348.01 2,227.17
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at | Apnl 2022 1434 - 4454 767.22 20677 1.032.87
Depreciation 388 - 863 195.05 2240 229.96
Sales’adjustment (570 - (9.69) (27.70) (69 98) (113.08)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 12.51 - 43.48 934.57 159.19 1.149.75
Depreciation 123 74.10 245 144.81 21.99 246.57
Sales/adjustment - - - (430 - 4430
Balance as at 31 March 2024 15.74 74.10 4593 1,035.07 181.18 1.352.01
Net block as at 31 March 2023 27.14 = 525 294.82 185.82 516.03
Net block as at 31 March 2024 23.91 525.23 3.31 155.87 166.83 §75.16

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(AN amownis in Rs. Lakhs wiless othenvise stated)

Note- 10 B
Intangible assets under development

Gross block

Balance as at | April 2022
Additions

Capnalised

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Additions

Capitahised

Balance as at 31 March 2024

163.05

21.63
(175.68)

9.00

(9.00)

Intangible assets under development aging schedule as at 31st

March 2024

Intangible assets under development

Amo

nt outstanding _for a period of

Less than | vear [1-2 vears 2-3 vears [More than 3 vears Total
Projects in progress = :
Intangible assets under development aging schedule as at 31st March 2023
Intangible assets under development Amount outstanding _for a period of

Less than | vear [1-2 vears [2-3 vears [More than 3 vears Total

Projects in progress

9.00

9.00

*There were no Intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost as compared 1o 11s ongnal plan

Note- 10 C
Intangible assets

Gross block

Balance as at | Apnl 2022
Additions

Sales adjustment

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Addinons

Sales/adjustment

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at | Apnl 2022
Amortisation

Sales/adjustment

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Amortisation

Sales/adjustment

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Net block as at 31 March 2023
Net block as at 31 March 2024

Note- 10 D
Right of use of assets

Gross block

Balance as at | Apnl 2022
Addition

Termmation/ adjustment
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Addition

Termination’ adjustment
Balance as at 31 March 2024

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 Apnl 2022
Amortisation

Termmation’ adjustment
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Amortisation

Termination’ adjustment

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Net block as at 31 March 2023

Net block as at 31 March 2024

Chartered

Accountants

Softwares

4.296.74
190.64

4.487.38

135.79
(9.00)

4.614.17

.762.97
489.06
0.03
2.252.06
499.76

2.235.32

1.862.35

Building

118.63
118.03

813
19.77

27.90
1083
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Note - 6 As at Asat
Loans 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

At amortised cost
Loans repayable on demand:

Margin funding loan receivables (secured. considered good) 8.485.42 2.908.31

Less: Margin received (891.27) (673.41)
Total - gross 7.594.15 2.234.90
Less: Impairment loss allowance due to expected credit loss - -
Total - net 7,594.15 2,234.90

Margin funding loans are given to customers as per SEBI guidelines and are secured by pledge of shares/ mutual funds/ bonds etc.

(i) Secured by tangible assets o -
(i1) Secured by intangible assets - .
(1i1) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees 5 -
(iv) Unsecured “ .
(v) Secured by others (shares/ mutual funds/ bonds) 7.594.15 2;
Total - Gross 7.594.15 2
Less: Impairment loss allowance = 2
Total - Net 7.594.15 2.234.90

Loans in India
Public sector - -

Others 7.594.15 2.234.90
7.594.15 2.234.90
Note - 7 Asat As at
Other financial assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
At amortised cost
(@) Security deposits
(i) Deposits (including margin money) with stock exchanges
2.635.13 3.285.11

- Unsecured. Considered good
- Unsecured. Considered doubtful
(i1) Deposits with others

- Unsecured. Considered good 255
- Unsecured. Considered doubtful 10.20

(b) Other Recoverable 595 0.04
2,653.83 3.313.79
Less: Impairment loss allowance due to expected credit loss (Refer Note 45) (10.20) (25.32)
2.643.03 3.288.47

Total 2,643.63 3,288.47

Asat Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Advance income tax'tax deducted at source 87.85 87.83
Total 87.85 87.83

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(Al amounts in Bs. Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

Note-9
Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets:

Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Impairment allowance due to expected credit loss
Disallowances u/s. 43B of the Income-Tax Act. 1961
Disallowances u/s. 40A(7) of the Income-Tax Act. 1961
Recogmiion of security deposits at amortised cost
Share based pavments to employees
Right of use assets and lease liabilities

Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement
Sub Total (A)

Deferred tax liabilities:
Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets

Sub Tatal (B)

Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B)

Movement in deferred tax balances for the year ended 31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

264.63 295.28
30.60 20,52
120.00 97.86
0.04 0.03
2253 6.95
3.38 242
732.68 834.13
1.173.86 1,257.19
348.92 403.06
348.92 403.06
824.94 854.13

Pardnlars Balance as on Recognised in Recognised in OCI Other Balance as on
1 April 2023 Profit and loss 31 March 2024
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):
Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Impairment allowance due to expected credit loss (30.65) - - 264.63
Disallowances w's. 43B of the Income-Tax Act. 1961 10.08 - - 30.00
Disallowances w's. 40A(7) of the Income-Tax Act. 1961 97.86 (6.67) 28.82 - 120.00
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (403.06) 54.14 - - (348.92)
Recognition of security deposits at amortised cost 0.03 0.01 - - 0.04
Share based payments to employees 6.95 15.58 - - 2253
Right of use assets and lease liabilities 242 0.96 - - 3.38
Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement * 834.13 = (101.45) 732.68
854,13 43.45 28.82 (101.45) 824.94
31 March 2023
Particulars B::Iam-‘v as on Recognised in Recognised in OCI Other Balance as on
1 April 2022 Profit and loss 31 March 2023
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities):
Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Impairment allowance due to expected credit loss 274.67 20.61 - - 295.28
Disallowances w's. 43B of the Income-Tax Act. 1961 2735 {6.82) . - 2052
Disallowances w's. 40A(7) of the Income-Tax Act. 1961 119.70 (7.87) (13.96) - 97.86
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (430.87) 27.81 - - (403.00)
Recognition of security deposits at amortised cost 0.01 0.02 - - 0.03
Share based payments to employees 63.07 (56.12) - - 6.95
Right of use assets and lease liabilities 0.79 1.63 - - 242
Minimum alternative tax credit entitlement * 939.19 - - (105.06) 834.13
993.91 (20.74) (13.96) (105.06) §54.13
The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on Long- term Capital Loss of' Rs. 43.60 lakhs.
* Expiry date of minimum alternative tax credit
Expiry financial year (as per Income-tax Act. 1961)
Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 April 2030 - 31 March 2031 - 6444
1 April 2031 - 31 March 2032 400.13 43714
1 April 2032 - 31 March 2 3587 35.87
1 April 2035 - 31 March 2036 25145 25145
687.45 788.90

Chartered
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(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless othenvise stated)

Note - 3
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Balances with banks:
- in current accounts
-in fixed deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months (Refer Note 35)

Total
Note -4
Bank balances other cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
In Fixed deposits (Refer Note 35)
- in fixed deposits accounts with original maturity of more than 3 months
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Total

Note - 3
Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

= 0.06
462.42 2.605.96
5.544.60 <
6,007,02 2,606,02
As at Asat

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

33.761.07 33.376.59

360.28 271.85

34,121.35 33,648.44
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Unsecured. considered good 6.932.04 5714.02
Having significant increase in credit risk 894.41 984.52
Total - gross 7.826.45 6.698.54
Less: Impairment loss allowance due to expected credit loss (Refer Note 45) (894.41) (984.52)
Total - net 6,932.04 5,714.02
Gross Trade receivables include:

Debts due by directors or other officers = £
Due from others 826.45 6.698.54
Trade Receivables aging schedule

As at 31st March 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date

Less than 6 months{6 months -1 year[1-2 2-3 More than 3 years | Total

vears vears

(i) _Undisputed _Trade receivables - considered good 5,552.24 131.90 155.92 177.09 914.91 6,932.04
(.n) 1'||Q1>|mlcq TTE!('L’ Receivables — which have significant - 1.80 0.26 6.3 885 52 894 41
increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired = - - - -
(iv) Disputed  Trade Receivables — considered good - - - - -
(v) Disputed  Trade Receivables - which have significant -
increase in credit risk - - - -
(vi) Disputed  Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - -
As at 31st March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date

Less than 6 months|6 months -1 yvear|[1-2 -3 More than 3 years |Total

vears years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 4.242.37 106.34 186,62 339.49 779.00 5.714.02
v;ii} {'Inlisnulull '.Fmdc Receivables — which have significant N 3220 508 023 947.01 084,52
increase in credit rish
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed  Trade Receivables — considered good -

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant .
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed  Trade Receivables — credit impaired -
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Note-11
Other non-financial assets

Prepaid expenscs

Balances with government authoritics *
Capital advances

Less: Impairment duc to Expected Credit Loss
Others (unsccured, considered good)

Less: Impairment due to Expected Credit Loss

Total

rended 31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2023

8104
1,705 69
415 1,701.54
7539
4.0%) 71.31
1.919.12

1,704.15
4.15)
5101

121

3.2

65.29

1.700.00

5101

* includes Rs. 3.50 Jakh (31 March 2023: Rs. 3 50 lakh) recoverable from UPVAT authoritics pending assessment of liability in respect of assessment years 2013-14 and 2014-15.

Note- 12 Asat Asat

Trade payables 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Total outstanding duc to micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 7481 -

Total outstanding due to ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2113 1942

Ageing of Trade Payablesi-

As at 31 March 2024

[Particutars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 vears Morc than 3 years | Total

[0 MSME 7431 - - - 7481

(11) Others 16,81 - - 4.32 21.13

(111) Disputed dues - MSME - = - - =

(v iDisputed dues - Others - - - - -

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Less than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears Total

i1} MSMI : E s B e
12.90 0.76 |44 432 1942

111) Others

(i) Disputed dues — MSME

v iDisputed dues - Others

ble with the Company. the following are the details

Om the basis of confirmations obtained from suppliers who have regstered thenselves under the Micro, Small and Medium Entery

prise Developmient Act, 2006 iIMSMED Act, 2006 a

nd based on the information

actlly paid

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(1) Principal amount rematning unpaid to any supplhier as at the end of the accounting year 7481 Nil
(1) Interest due thereon remaiming unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting vear Nl Nil
(111) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier bevond the appointed day Gl Nil
(1) The amount of interest due and pavable for the vear Nil Nil
(v) The amount of interest acerued and remaimng unpaid at the end of the accounting year Ml Nil
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding vear. until such date when the interest dues as above are il i

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined 1o the extent such parties have been identified on the basts of formation avarlable with the Company. This has been

relied upon by the auditors

Note - 13
Barrowings (other than debt seeurities)

Unsecured

Intercorporaic deposits from related partics
- From Holding Company
- From Fellow Subsidiary Company

Total

Borrowings in India
Borrowings outside India
Total

Reconciliation of linbilities arising from financin
The changes i the Company s liabilities arising from (inanc

ne activitics arc as follows

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

1.766.00
12.610.00

14.376.00

14.376.00

14.376.00

articulurs

Borrowings
(other than debt
securities)

Balance as at 31 March 2022

8301

Cash flows:
- Repayment
- Proceeds
Non cash:

- Others

8421591

Bulance as at 31 March 2023

Cash flows:
- Repayment
- Proceeds
Non cash:

- Others

(16.355.00)

20.731.00

Balance as at 31 March 2024

14.376.00

Note - 14
Finance Lease obligations

Finance Lease obligations ( Refer Note 47)

Total

Chartered

Accountants

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

99.06

99,06
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Note- 15 Asat Asat
Other financial liabilities 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Others:
Employce related payables 20.83 5437
Pavable for capital goods 2446 42.70
Margin from customers "’ 1345370 11.065.92
Total 13.498.99 11.162.99

(1) "Margin from customers” represents amount reccived from customer for as margin for executng orders on stock exchanges.

Note- 16 Asat Asat
Current tax liabilities (net) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for Taxation 43843 203.81
(Net of tax deducted at source of Rs. 657.21 lakh (31 March 2023: Rs. 332,61 lakh))
Total 438.43 203.81
Note- 17 Asat Asat
Provisions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
For Emplovee Benefits (Refer Note 39)
Provision for Gratuity 44040 336.06
Provision for Compensated Absences 109,35 7048
Total 34981 406.54
Note - 18 Asat Asat
Other non-financial liabilities 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue received in advance 3347 2833
Others
Statutory dues pavables 151.56 2306
Expenses and others pavable 389.32 55533
Total 574.35 616.72

(i) Revenue reccived in advance represents brokerage and depository income billed but not recognised as income in the statement of profit and loss since the same is related to future period

Reconeiliation of revenue recewved in advance is as follows:

Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the begmning of the year 28.33 4512
Add: Advance received dunng the year 85.62 171.63
Less: Revenue recognised during the yvear (80 .48) (188.44)
Balance at the end of the year 3347 28.33
Note - 19 Asat Asat
Equity share eapital 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Authorised
Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 cach 1,40,00,000 140000 1 4000000 1. 400,00

1.40,00.000 1. 400,00 1.40,00.000 1ANLBO

In pursuance of Section 61¢1) and other applicable provisi if any. of the Companics Act. 2013, members of the Company 1n thair meeumg held on | February 2020 granted their approval for
increase in the authorised share capital from Rs. 100,00 lakh to Rs. 1.400.00 lakh divided in to 1.40.00.000 equity shares of face value of Rs 10 cach

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Issued, subseribed amd fully paid up
Equity Shares of face valuc of Rs. 10 cach fullv paid up

1.02,75.000 1.027 50 13700000 1.370.00

Total 1.02.75.000.00 1.027.50 1.37.00.000.010 1.370.00

reasc in authorized share capital. and upon receipt of consideration in cash, the Board of Directors of the Company. at their me held o
Company. Dhani Services

1. Consequent upon the i Februan 20, 2020
eranted their approval and the Company issucd and allotted 137.00.000 equity shares respectively of face value Rs. 10 per share to the Hol ed ("DSL")ata
premium of Rs. 230 per share. As a result, the paid up equity share capital of the Company inereased 1o Rs. 13.70.00.000 divided into 1.37.00.000 ¢quity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up

cs and Exchange Board of India [Buyback of
000 fulls paid equity sharcs of Rs. 10/- cach of
v general meeting

2. Pursuant 1o the applicable provisions of Sections 68, 69 70 and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with Scey
rities | Regul . 2018, as amended. to the extent applicable. the members of the Company approved a proposal to buy-back upto 3
the Company for an ag; te amount not exceeding Rs 8 903 lakhs being 25.00% of the total paid up equity share capital at Rs. 2611/~ per cquity share. at their extra -or
held September 12 2023, following the authorisation from the Board of Directors at its mecting held on July 28. 2023 and approval from stock exchanges of which the Company 1s a member as
a Stock Broker. Accordingly, the Company bought back 34.25.000 equity shares for cash from Dhani Services Limited. its existing sharcholder and extinguished the equity shares on September
12. 2023 Capital redemption reserve of Rs. 342,50 lakhs was ereated o the extent of share capital extinguished and premium on buyback of Rs 8,562 50 lakhs was utilised from securitics

prenmium account.




Dhani Stocks Limited
Naotes to financial

& Terma/rights attached ta cquity shares:

1) The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having u luce vlue of Rs 10 per share Each holder of

(1) In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled 1o

mtements for the yeur ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts i Rs. Lakhs undess otherwise siated)

distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of Equity Shares held by the sharcholders

b. Reconciliation of the number of shares und amount outstanding at the beginning und ut the end of the financial year :

Equity shares

Balance at the beginning of the yeor
Add: Shares 1ssued dunng the year

Less. Shares extinguished on buv-back dunng the vear

Outstanding at the end of vear

€. Details of sharchalders holding more than $% shures

Names of sharcholders

Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 cach fully paid up

The entire share capial 1s held by Dha
Limited, the holding Company and its nominees

. Shares held by promoters st the end of the reparting year

Asal 31 March 2024

Axat 31 March 2024

Equity Share is entitled 10 one wote per share

receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The

As at 31 March 2023

No. of shures Amaount No. of shares Amaunt
1.37.00.000 1L.330.00 1,37.00,000 137000
3 342 50 B "
1,02,75, 000 1,027.50 1, 37,00 06040 1,370.00
Ax it 31 March 2024 Ax ut 31 March 2023
Na. of shares % held No. of shares % held
102,735,000 LY 1.37.00,000 100

Name of Promater

Now of Shares

% of total shares | % Change during the
ear

Dham Services Limiied and sts nominces

102,78 000

100%

1,02,75, 0040

100% -

As ar 31 March 2023

Name of Promoter

No. of Shares

% of tutal shares | % Clinge during the
vear

Dhani Services Limited and its nominees

1.37.00.000

100%

1,37,00,000

100% -

As per records of the Company

luding its register of members/sharcholders, and other declarations received from shar
represents both legal and bencficial ownership of shares

« The Company has not 1ssued any bonus shares during the current year and five vears unmediately preceding current year

ehalders regarding beneficial interest, the above sharcholding

£ There are no shares issucd pursuant (o contret without payment being received in cush, allotted as fully pand up by vy of bonus issue The Company has not bought buck shares dunng

the last five vears except as disclosed m Note 19(2) ahove

& Employees stock option plans: [Refer Note: 43]

Note - 20
Other equity

(8 Secunties Premium

(b) Share based payment reserve
() Other component of equity
(d) Capital reserve

(e} Capital Redempuion Reserve
() Retained Eamings

Total

(#) Securities Premium

Balunce ut the beginning of the year

Add: Premium on shares issued during the vear
Less: Share 1ssue expenses

Less: Ulised for Buyback of equity shares (Reler Note 19(2))

Total (a)

(b) Share based payment reserve
Bulance at the beginning of the vear

Add: Transferred from the Sttement of Profit and Loss

Less: Transferred 1o other component of equity
Total (h)

(€) Other component of cquity

Halance at the beginning and end of the vear
Add: Addiuon duning the vear

Total (c)

(d) Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning and end of the year
Add Addition during the year

Totul (d)

(€) Capital Redemption Reserve
Balunee at the beginning and end of the vear

Add Created on aceount of Buy back of equity: shares (Refer Nowe 19(2))

Totul {¢)

(N Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Profit for the year

Add Transterred from other component of equiry
Less: Transferred 1o Capital Redemption Reserve

Retamed Eamings

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans through other comprehensive income

Opening Balance

Other comprehensive income (net of 1) for the vear

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans through other comprehensive income

Total Appropriations
Total (N

Total

As ol Axut
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

24,175 80 1273830
06 17.40
63 53 6353
R2069 R206%
342 50 5
682141 3.62594
32,294.98 39,265.86
12,738 30 32,738 30
8.562 50
24,175.50 32,738.30
1740 200101
53 66 (135.635)
- 157.06)
7106 17.40
6133 647
a 51.06
63.53 63.53
K069 82069
82069 K20.69
14250 -
J42.50 .
562594 1,955 54
1608 11 164973
(342300 -
0N91.58 5.608.27
- (1332
(70 14y 3304
70.14) 067
(70.14) 20.67
682141 5,625.94

32,294.99 39,265.86




Dhani Stocks ited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amonnts in Rs. Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

Note - 20
Other equity (Continued)

(2} Securities premium

Sceuritics premium represents premium received on issuc of shares. The amount is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013

(b) Share based payment reserve

The share based payment reserve is used o record the value of equity-scttled share based payment transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in share based pavment reserve are
wransferred to share preminm/retained camings upon exercise of stock options by employees

(¢) Other component of equity

Other component of equity are upon exercise of stock options by employces during the vear.

() Capital reserves

Capital reserve has been created in accordance with provision of the Act and 1s not available for distribution 1o owners. Additions(net of taxes) have been made on account of acquisition of stock
broking business from Dhani Services Limited. the Holding Company,

(¢) Retained carnings

Retamed camings arc the accumulated profits camned by the Company ull date and Actuanial gams and losses on defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive income (net of
taxes) . less wransfer 10 general reserves. dividend (including dividend distribution 1ax) and other disinbutions made to the sharcholders.

f) Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been created in accordance with provision of Section 69 of Companies act. 20
cquity shares bought back to the Capital Redemption Reserve (CRR).

. which requires the company to transfer an amount cqual to the nominal value of

(This space has been mtentionally left blank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 21
Interest Income

On financial assets measured at amortised Cost:

Interest on deposits
- Interest on fixed deposits v

banks and deposits with stock exchanges
Other interest income
- Interest on delaved pavments / margin funding

- Unwinding of interest income

Total

Note - 22
Fees and commi:

Brokerage and other ancillary income
Income from depository services
Income from mutual funds and IPO commission and account opening charges

Total

Note - 23
Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss account -

- Investments
Gain on redemption of mutual funds

Total

Fair Value Changes
-Realised
Total Net gain on fair value changes

Note - 24
Sule of services

Transaction and other charges

Total

Note - 25
Other income

Excess provision for expenses no longer required written back
Interest on income tax refund

Sundry credit balances written back

Miscellancous income

Dividend received on behalf of be
Less: Transferred to beneficial owners

ficial owners (net of tax deduction of source)

Total

Note - 26
Finance costs

On financial liabilities measured at amortised Cost -

Interest on deposits
- Interest on inter-corporate deposits

Interest on harrowings
« Interest on bank overdraft

Interest on Lease Liabilities

Other interest expense
- Interest on Taxes

Total

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

2,251.82 1.478.08
1.461.55 1,.399.32

0.32 042
3.713.69 2.877.82

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

6.115.89 4,794.57
592,14 397606
938 192.73
671741 538496

car ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

43.73 4528
43.73 45.28
43.73 45.28
43.73 45.28

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

475,61

497.71

475,61

497.71

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

220.71 11516
0.95 443
10393 62.21
3372 21.90
048 5702
(0.48) 157.02)
339.31 21041

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

32293 2202
4.67 943
7.50 875

1447
349.57 40.20




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless etlerwise stated)

Note - 27 . For the year ended For the year ended
Fees and commission expense 31 March 2024 31 Muarch 2023
SEBI charges 7.01 .
Depositon charges 101.01 72.25
Transaction charges 464.06 540,10
Membership fees 157 781
Other Exchange Charges 58.66 12272
Total 638.31 730,60
Note - 28 For the year ended For the year ended
Impairment on financial instruments 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Measured at Amortised Cost
Impairment due to expected credit loss

- on trade receivables 91.54 80,00
- on capital advances/sceurity deposits/ Loan to employce 408 12.00
Bad debis / advances written ofT {net of recoverics of Rs.4 R0 lakhs) 191.99 1,555.71
Less - Adjusted against provisions (196.77) (R73.80)
Total 084 77191
Note - 29 For the year ended For the year ended
Employee benefits expense 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salanes and wages 3.572.11 1.703.03
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 28.25
Sharc-based payments to employees 5360 (135.65)
Staff wellare expenses 781 1.29
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences (net) [Refer Note: 39| 159,79 4578
Total 3.546.92 1.642.70
Note - 30 For the year ended For the year ended
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment (Refer Note: 10 A) 246.57 22996
Amortisation on other intangible assets (Refer Note: 10.C) 499 76 489.06
Amortisation on Right of use Assets (Refer Note: 10 D) 1983 1977
Total T66.16 738.79
Note - 31 For the year ended For the year ended
Other expenses 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Reparrs and maitenance - others 1197 196
Communication expenscs 5338
Rates and taxes 2738
Printing and stationery 14.63
Payment to statutory auditors 17.50
Legal and professional charges 1.951.50
Insurance .08
Stamp duty 5.52
Web hosting expenses 7608
Leased line expenses 160.87
Sofiware expenses 33813
Remt Expenses 839
Electnicity expenscs 1.31
Recruitment and trainmg expenses 158,63
Travelling and convey ance 781
Office mantenance 3491
Buswmess promotion 3032
Loss on sale’ scrapping of fixed assets -
Manpower hirmg charges 132.59
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses [Refer Note: 52 18.37
Miscellancous expenscs 713
3.416.39 304743
*Auditor’s remuneration includes:
for statutory andit 11.80 10,60
for certifications 6,85 690
for tax audit** 230 2.50
** included in legal and professional expenscs
Nate - 32 For the year ended Fur the year ended
Tax expenses 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A. The major components of income tax expense for the year as under:
Income tax recognised i Statement of profit & loss -
Tax expense:
Current 1ax 636 88 35408
Deferred lax (43.43) 20.74
393,45 37482
unting profit before tix expense 2201 56
29.12%

ome tax rate

Expected tax expense 04109
Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expeeted income tx expense to reported income Gy expense

(3R 16) 3441

Tax effect of expenses disallowed fincome)
- (248 .85)

Allowance u's 3601 ivma) of the Income-Tax Act, 1901

Tax expenses of carher years 12490
Tax effect of carny forward Josses (including unabsorbed depreciation) (13,19
37482

Income iy expense
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amownts in Rs. Lakhs unfess otherwise stated)

Note - 33
Earnings per share:

Basic camings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity sharcholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares owtstanding duning the
reporting period. Diluted camings per share are computed using the weighted average number of cquity shares and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the procceds recenvable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value

Dilutive potential equity shares arc deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. The number of cquity shares and potential diluted cquity
shares arc adjusted for stock split and bonus shares as appropriate.

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net Profit/(loss) for the year (in Rs. lakh) 160811 1.649.73
Nominal value of equity shares (In Rs.) 10.00 1000
118420355 1.37.00,000

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic carnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted camings per share
Basic carnings per share (In Rs.)

Diluted earnings per share (In Rs.)

55

118,42 J27.00,000
12.04

13.5% 12.04




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amownts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note - 34
The Company has not entered into any derivative mstruments duning the vear. There are no foreign currency exposures as at 31 March 2024 (Previous year. Rs. Nil).

Note - 35
Balances in Fixed deposits include deposits: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(a) Deposits pledged with the National Stock Exchange of India, BSE Limited. NSE Clearing Limited (formerly National 34.989.25 29.060.25

Securities Clearing Corporation Limited). National Commeodity and Derivatives Exchange Limited and Multi Commodity
Exchange of India Limited for the purpose of cash collateral, base capital and additional base capial

(b) Deposits pledged with banks for overdraft facilities availed by the Company 4.192.00 4.242 00
(c) Deposits pledzed with bank against bank guarantees issued in favour of Unique [dentification Authority of India 25.00 2500
(d) Deposits pledged for arbitration matters. 47.57 47.19
(e) Pledged with Sales Tax Authorities - 1.90
() Deposits pledged with State Commission, New Delhi for appeal filed by the Company in a consumer dispute matter 0.25 0.25
Total 39.254.07 33.376.59
Note - 36

Contingent habilities not provided for in respect of

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts on account of pending litigation: Rs. 61 36 lakhs (Previous year: Rs, 63 86 lakhs)

(b) Income tax- on account of penalty u/s 271(1)(c) of Rs. 1 54 lakhs (Previous year Rs Nil) levied vide an order passed by the Assessing Officer, against which the Company has preferred an appeal
with the Comnussioner of Income Tax (Appeals) in respect of assessment year 2013-14

(¢) Income tax of Rs. 2699 lakhs (Previous year Rs Nil) pertaining to FY 2021-22 on account of disallowance of certain expenditure in terms of the assessment order under section 143(3) of the
Income Tax Act. 1961, against which the Company has preferred an appeal. which 1s pending before CIT(A)

{d) The Company in the ordinary course of business, has various cases pending in different authonities and courts, however, the management does not expect any unfavourable outcome resulting in
material adverse effect on the financial position of the Company

Note -37
Capital commitments outstanding as at 31 March 2024: Rs NIL (31 March 2023: NIL).

Note - 38
As per the best estimate of the management, no provision is required to be made as per Indian Accounting Standard 37- Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014, as amended. in respect of any present abligation as a result of a past event that could lead 1o a

prabable outflow of resources. which would be required to settle the obligation
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note -39
Employee benefits:

(a) Defined contribution plans

Provident Fund

The Company has certain defined contribution plans such as provident fund for benefits of 1ts employee. Contribution are made to provident fund in India for emplovees as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and 1t has no further contractual nor any
constructive obligation. During the vear. the Company has recounized the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of defined contribution plans and cluded in "Employee
benefits expense”

For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Contribution made to Employees' Provident Fund Organisation 34.65 1545
Contribution made to Employees' State Insurance Corporation 0.48 0.72
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.82 0.85
Contribution to Employees' National Pension Scheme 1542 10.32

51.37 27.34

(b) Defined benefits plan
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee 1s entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratwity Act. 1972, The hability of Gratuity 1s recognized on the basis
of actuarial valuation. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit hability/(asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income and not reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods

A. Gratuity (non-funded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s hability. Increase in salary merease rate assumption m future valuations will also increase the hability

Salary increases

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s hability
Mortahty & disabihty Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the habihues.
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s lability

Withdrawals

(i) Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

" Asat As at
Farticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obhgation 440 46 336.006
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 440.46 336.06

(ii) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Ko thee year For the year ended

articulars ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

6998

Current service cost
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses =

Gains or Losses on Non routine settlements

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 3435 27.54
Interest income on plan assets - -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 104.33 56.06
Actuanal (gain)/loss recognised during the year 98 95 (47 .95)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income 203.28 8.11

(iii) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

For the year

Particulars ended
31 March 2024

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the begmmng of year 336.06 41104
Current service cost 69,98 38.52
Interest cost 3435 27.54
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses -
Benefits paid (106.41) (83.09)
Other adjustments/'Reversals = e
Acquisition adjustments 754 -
Actuanial loss/(gain) on obligation

Actuanal (zain)/loss on ansing from change in demographic assumption - -

Actuarial (gan)/loss on arismg from change in financial assumption 7.13 (7.61)

Actuarial (gam)/loss on ansing from expenience adjustment 9] 82 (40 34)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 440,46 336,06

Chartered

Accountants
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Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(AN amonnis in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stared)

Note -39
Employee benefits: (continued)
(iv) Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets):

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Government of India Secunties
State Government securities

High Quahty Corporate Bonds
Equity Shares of listed companies
Property

Funds Managed by Insurer

Bank Balance

Total

(v) Movement in the plan assets recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of vear
Actual return on plan assets

Employer's contribution

Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

(vi) Actuarial assumptions

For the year

For the year ended

Parti ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discounting rate 7.22% 7.36%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (vears) 60.00 60.00
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years 3.00 3.00

From 31 to 44 vears 2.00 2.00

Above 44 years 1.00 100

¢ duration 16.78 16.57

Weighted averag

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012 - 14)

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age. To provide for these eventualities. the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives

Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate table

(vii) Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 440 40 336.06

- Impact due to increase of 0.30 % (22.40) (18.87)

- Impact due 10 decrease of 0.50 % 24.08 2014

Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year 440 46 336.06

- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 24.49 2051

- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (22.90) (19.16)

(viii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

z Asat Asat

Earticitirs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Oto | vear 826 6.99

1 10 2 year 660 7.50

210 3 year 5.28

3 to 4 vear 9.30

4to 5 year 7.35

5 to 6 year 674
292.90

G year onwards

The employer best estimate of contributions expected to be contributed during the annual period beginnir
lakh)

after the Balance Sheet date towards Gratuity 1s Rs. 74.86 lakh ( Previous vear Rs. 58.90
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(Al amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note -39

Employee benefits: (continued)
Other long-term employee benefit plans

Provision for unfunded compensated absences for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions. typically. are
vears of service and employee compensation. Commitments are actuarially determined using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in actuarial assumptions are accounted
for in the Statement of Profit and Loss

B. Compensated absences (non-funded)

Risks associated with plan provisions

Salary increases Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the liabihity
Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability

Mortality & disability Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the habilities.

Withdrawals Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Plan’s hability

(i) Amount recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars Azl At

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of obligation 109.35 70.48
Fair value of plan assets = _
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 109.35 70.48

(ii) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

For the year
Particulars ended

31 March 2024
Current service cost 46.53 1038
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Gains or Losses on Non routine settlements

For the year ended
31 March 2023

981 6.31

Interest cost on defined benefit ob

Interest income on plan assets - -
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised during the vear (0.87) (26.97)
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 35,47 (10.28)

(iii) Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

For the year
ARSI For the year ended

Particulars ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 7048 93.9]
Current service cost 46.53 10.38
Interest cost 981 6.31
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses -
Benetus paid (3.40) (13.15)
Acquisthion adjustments (13.20) -

Actuanal loss/(gain) on obligation
Actuarial (gain)/loss on arising from change in demog

sraphic assumption n
Actuanal (gain)/loss on arising from change in financial assumption 198 (1.83)

Actuarial {gain)/loss on arising from experience adjustment 1285) (25.14)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the vear 109.35 70.48

(iv) Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets):

For the year
Particulars ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Government of India Securities - -

State Government securities = z
High Quality Corporate Bonds - -
Equity Shares of listed companies = 5
Property - N
Funds Managed by Insurer - -
Bank Balance - g

Total - -

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Chartered
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Accountants / x
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al comonnts in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note -39

Employee benefits: (continued)

(v) Movement in the plan assets recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

For the year
Particulars ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of vear - =
Actual return on plan assets - -
Emplover's contribution _ .
Benefits paid - .
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -

(vi) Actuarial assumptions

For the year ;
¥ For the year ended

Particulars ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discounting rate 122% 7.36%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (vears) 60.00 60.00
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 vears 3.00 3.00

From 31 to 44 vears 200 200

Above 44 years 1.00 1.00
Weighted average duration 16.78 16 57

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012-14)

Compensated Absences is payable to the employees on death or resignation or on retirement at the attainment of superannuation age. To provide for these eventualities. the Actuary has used Indian
Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate table

(vii) Sensitivity analysis liability for Compensated absences

For the year

Particulars ended For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the vear 109 35 7048
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (+.79) 4.19)
- Impact due to decrease of’ 0.50 %o 5.07 443
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 109.35 7048
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 5.20 4.56
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (4.85) (424)

(viii) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

For the year

Particulars ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Oto | vear 26.51 1.55
1 to 2 year 141 1.54
210 3 vear 218 1.15
3104 year 1.36 1.76
410 5 year 1.71 1.50
510 6 vear 216 138
6 vear onwards 74.02 61.60

fter the Balance Sheet date. towards Compensated Absences is Rs 23.40 lakh ( Previous

The emplover best estimate of contributions expected to be contributed during the annual period beginni
vear Rs. 16.78 lakh)

I Security. 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Mimistry of Labour and
gestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Soci
Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13. 2020, and has mvited su
The Company will assess the impact and 11s evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in 1ts financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective

and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AL caomonnts 1 Bs. Lakhs wnless otherwise stated)

Note - 40
There are no borrowing costs to be capitalised as at 31 March 2024 (Previous Year: Rs. Nil)

Note - 41
Segment reporting:

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") reviews operations and allocates resources at the Company level. The Company 1s primarily engaged in the business of providing 'broking and related
activities', which is considered to be the only reportable segment in accordance with IND-AS 108 - Operating Segments. All other activities of the Company revolve around the main business . The
Company derives its major revenues from broking activities and its customers are spread across India. The Company operates solely i one Geographic segment namely “Within India” and hence no
separate information for Geographic segment wise disclosures is required

Note - 42
Related party disclosures
(a) Names of related parties identified in accordance with IND AS -24 "Related Party Disclosures':

The Company’s principal related parties consist of its holding company. Indiabulls Ventures Limited and its subsidiaries. affiliates and key managenial personnel. The Company’s material related party
transactions and outstanding balances are with related parties with whom the Company routinely enter mto transactions in the ordinary course of business

Description of relationship Names of related parties

(1) Where control exists
Holding Company Dhani Services Limited

(i1) Others

Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Entities under common control Indiabulls Distribution Services Limited

(with whom transactions entered into Dhani Healthcare Limited
during the period) Dhani Loans and Services Limited

Transerv Limited

Mr. Divvesh B. Shah. Director

Mr. Ashu Khanna. Director

Mr. Prasenjeet Mukherjee

Ar_Prem Singh Gahalawat

Mr. Anand Kumar (resigned w e f 28th July 2023)

Mr. Raj Kumar Gupta (w.e.f 28th July 2023)

Mr Abhishek Jain , Chief Financial Officer (w e f25th May 2023)
Mr Sameer Gehlaut. Individual exercising significant influence

=

Key Management Personnel

Note - 42
Related party disclosures (continued)
(b) Significant Transactions with Related Parties during the vear ended 31 March 2024:

. Holding company Key Management Personnel Entities under common control

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Finance
Inter Corporate Deposit Taken 5.700.00 2.700.00 - - 16,135.00 -
(Maximum Balance Ouistanding durimg the year)
Expenses =
Interest Expenses 11894 22.02 203 99
Reimbursement of expenses 9.20
Transfer of Gratuity & Compensated - = - 12.58 -
absences &
Transfer of Employee Advance - - - - 33.29 -
Buvback of equity shares 8.905.00 - - - -
Compensation to key managerial personnel =
- Shori-term emplovee benefits - - 106.73 1513 - -
- Post employment benefits - Gratuity 4922 13.21
- Other long term employee benefits - compensated - - 9.95 163 - -
absences
(c) Balance outstanding at year end:
Key
Nature of Transaction As at Holding company Management Entities under common control Total
Personnel
- 31 March 2024 1.766.00 - 12.610.00 14.376.00

Inter corporate deposit taken 1 March 2023 - - - >

In accordance with Ind AS 24, disclosures in respect of transactions with identified related parties are given only for such period during which such relationships existed. Related Party relationships
are given above are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were n ordinary course of the busmess and are on

arm’s length basis




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amownts in Ry Lakhs unless otherwise staied)

Note - 43
Employee stock option schemes:

The emplovees of the Company have been granted option as per the existing schemes of Dhani Services Limited ('Holding Company'). On exercise. the employees will be allotted shares of the
Holding Company.

A, Grants during the year:
Dhami Services Limited ("the Holding Company”) has established the “Udaan Employee Welfare Trust™ (“Udaan - EWT”) ("Trust") for the implementation and management of its employees benefit

scheme viz. the “Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme — 2008 & 20097 (Scheme) for the benefit of the employees of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries. There have been
no new grants during the year (Previous year 1,16,00,000).

B. Employees Stock Options Schemes:
(i) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2008 (DSL ESOP - 2008)

DSL ESOP - 2008

Toral opnions under the scheme (Nos.) 2,00.00,000
P
Opuions granted (Nos. ) 97,00,000 8.80.600 18.00.000 18,00,000
(Regrant) (Regr: {Regrant) (Regrant)
VSt peitd i et Five years, Five vears, Five vears, Five vears,
E = 20% each year 20% cach year 20% each year 20% each year
2nd July each year. 25" March each 28" June each 25" February
Vesting date commencing year, commencing  vear, commencing each year,
e 2 July 2017 25 March 2019 28 June 2023 commencing 25

February 2023

3 5 years fromeach S vears from each 5 vears from each 5 vears from each
Exercisable period ye e ye C 3 e years from eacl

vesting date vesting date vesting date vesting date
Exercise price (2) 2415 25485 30 68
Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos.) 45.94.800 27.400 - 18.00,000
Granted' regranted during the vear (Nos.) = = 18,00,000 -
Forfeited duning the vear (Nos.) 5.50.400 27400 . 18,00,000
Exercised duning the vear (Nos.) 22.00.000 2 = £
Expired dunng the vear (Nos.) - = 5 .
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the vear (Nos.) - - - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) 1844400 - 18.00,000 -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos,) 18,44.400 - - s
Remaming contractual life (weighted months) 30 - 87 2
Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.) 18.44.400 - 18.00,000 -
Granted/ regranted dunng the year (Nos ) - - - -
Forfeited durning the vear (Nos.) 6,94, 400 - 9.00,000 -
Exercised dunng the year (Nos.) - - - -
Expired during the vear (Nos.) - - - -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos ) - - - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 11.50.000 - 9.00,000 -
Vested and exercisable as a1 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 11.50,000 - 1.80,000 -
Remaining contractual hife (weighted months) 19 - 75 a

Werghted average exercise price of share during the year ended 31 March 2024: NIL (31 March 2023: 24.15)

(This space has been mtennonally left blank)




Note - 43
Employee stock option schemes: (continued)

(ii) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2009 (DSL -

Total options under the Scheme (Nos.)
Options granted (Nos.)

Vesting period and percentage

Vesting date

Exercisable period

Exercise pnice (2)

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos,)
Granted/ regranted during the vear (Nos.)

Forfeited dunng the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.)
Granted! regranted during the year (Nos.)

Forfeited during the year (Nos )

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos.)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

Total options under the Scheme (Nos.)
Options granted (Nos.)

Vesting period and percentage

Vesting date

Exercisable penod

Exercise price (2)

Qutstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos.)
Granted/ regranted during the vear (Nos.)

Forfeited dunng the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the vear (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos )
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.)
Remaining contractual hfe (Weighted Months)

OQutstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.)
Granted/ regranted during the vear (Nos )

Forfeited during the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the vear (Nos.)

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos )
Outstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos. )
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

ESOP 2009)
DSL ESOP - 2009

DSL ESOP - 2009 DSL ESOP - 2000 DSL ESOP - 2009

2.00,00,000
20,50,000

Ten vears,
10% each year

13" April each
vear, commencing
13 Apnl 2011

5 vears from each
vesting date
3135

50.000

50,000
50,000
24

Weighted average exercise price of share during the year ended 31 March 2024: Nil (31 March 2023. Nil)

chartered \C
Accgunmms 2>

>
%S

2.00,00,000 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
95,00,000 98,00.000 1,00,00,000
(Regrant) (Regrant)

Five years. Five vears, Five years,

20% each year 20% each vear 20% each year

13" May each vear, 28" Juneeach 2™ September each

commencing vear, year, commencing
13 May 2017 commencing 28 2 September 2018
June 2023

5 years from each 5 vears from each
vesting date vesting date

5 years from each
vesting date

16 30 219.65
25.01,600 - 12.96.800
- 98,00,000 "
7.11.200 - 12.96,800
17.90.400 98,00,000 5
17.90.400 - .
3l 87 s
17,90.400 98,00.000 -
1,62,000 41,00,000 -
16.28,400 57,00,000 -
16.28.400 11,40,000 &
19 75 -
DSL ESOP - DSL ESOP - 2009
2009
2.00,00.000 2,00,00,000
98,00,000 84,00,000
(Regrant) (Regrant)
Five vears, Five years,

20% each vear 20% each year

01" April each vear,

commencing 01 Apnl
2022

25" February
each year,
commencing 25
February 2023
5 vears from each
vesting date

68.00

5 vears from each
vesting date
150.00

98,00,000 =
98.00,000 <




Note - 43
Employee stock option schemes: (continued)

(iii) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2019 (“Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2019").

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant 10 (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its meeting held on 22 October 2019; and (b) a special resolution of the
shareholders™ of the Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 4 December 2019, result of which were declared on 5 December 2019.

This Scheme compnses

a  Dhani Services Limited Emplovees Stock Option Plan 2019 (*ESOP Plan 20197)

b.  Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2019 ("ESP Plan 20197)
¢ Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2019 (“SARs Plan 20197)

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations. 2014 (the “SBEB Regulations”), the Company has set up "Udaan - Employee Welfare
Trust” ("Trust") for the purpose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust, m compliance with the “SBEB Regulations™, is authonsed to
purchase upto an aggregate of 10,500,000 (One Crore Five lakh) fully paid-up equity shares, being not more than 2% (Twao percent) of the fully pad-up equity share capital of the Holding Company
as on the date of approval of sharcholders. from the secondary market The Holding Company has appropriated 10,400,000 fully paid up equity shares of the Holding Company purchased by the Trust
under the Scheme.

DSL-ESBS 2019

Total opnions under the Scheme (Nos.) 1,05,00,000
Options granted (Nos ) 1,04,00,000
Vesting period and percentage Three years,

33.33% each year

Vesting date 17" August each vear,
commencing 17
August 2021
S years from each
vesting date
250

Exercisable period

Exercise pnce ()

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2022 (Nos.) 1.,04,00,000
Granted during the vear (Nos ) .
Forfeited during the vear (Nos.)
Exercised durmg the year (Nos.)
Expired dunng the vear (Nos.) -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the vear (Nos.) 1,04,00,000
Outstanding as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) -
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

Outstanding af the beginning of 1 April 2023 (Nos.)
Granted during the year (Nos.)

Forfeited during the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

the year (Nos )

Qutstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.)
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

(iv) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2020 (Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2020"),

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant 10: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its meeting held on 23 January 2020: and (b) a special resolution of the
shareholders™ of the Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 20 March 2020, result of which were declared on 21 March 20

This Scheme compnses:

a Dhani Senaces Limited Employees Stock Opuon Plan 2020 ("ESOP Plan 20207)

b Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2020 ("ESP Plan 20207)

¢ Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2020 (“SARs Plan 20207)

In accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the “SBEB Regulations™). the Holding Company has set up "Udaan - Emplayees
Welfare Trust” (Trust) for the purpose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid. The Trust. in compliance with the "SBEB Regulations™, 1s authorised
to purchase upto an aggregate of 9,300,000 (Ninety Three lakh) fully paid-up equity shares. being not more than 2% (Two percent) of the fully paid-up equity share capital of the Holding Company
as on the date of approval of shareholders, from the secondary market. The Holdng Company has appropriated 93.00.000 fully paid up equiry shares of the Holding Company purchased by the Trust
under the Scheme.




Note - 43
Employee stock option schemes: (continued)
DSL-ESBS 2020

Total options under the Scheme (Nos ) 93.00,000
Options granted (Nos.) 93,00,000
Vesting period and percentage Three years,
33.33% each year
Vesting date 7" Apnil each year,
commencing 7 Apnl
2021

: 3 vears from eac
Exercisable peniod 2 s h
vesting date

Exercise price () 250

Outstanding as at | April 2022 (Nos.) 93.00,000
Granted regranted during the vear (Nos ) S
Exercised during the year (Nos }

Expired during the vear (Nos.) -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the 93.00,000
Outstanding as a1 31 March 2023 (Nos.) -

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2023 (Nos.) NA
Remaining contractual hife (Weighted Months) NA
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) -
Ouistanding as at 1 April 2023 (Nos.) -

Granted’ regranted during the vear (Nos )
Exercised during the yvear (Nos )

Expired during the vear (Nos.)
Surrendered dunng the year (Nos.)
Quitstanding as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) 4
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2024 (Nos.) s
Remaming contractual life (Weighted Months)
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

(iv) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2021 (*Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2021").

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to. {a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Holding Company at its meeting held on 06 March 2021 and (b) a special resolution of the
shareholders” of the Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 15 Apnl 2021, result of which were declared on 16 Apnl 2021

This Scheme compnises:

a. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2021 (“ESOP Plan 20217)

b.  Dhani Services Limited Emplovees Stock Purchase Plan 2021 (“ESP Plan 20217)

¢ Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 (“SARs Plan 20217)

In accordance with the Secunties and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Emplovee Benefits) Regulauons, 2014 (the "SBEB Regulauons™), the Holding Company has set up "Udaan -
Employees Welfare Trust" (Trust) for the purpose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes as aforesaid The Trust. in compliance with the "SBEB Regulations”™.
is authorised to purchase upto an aggregate of 1,05,00,000 (One Crore Five lakh) fully paid-up equity shares, being not more than 2% (Two percent) of the fully pmd-up equity share capital of the
Holding Company as on the date of approval of shareholders, from the secondary market. The Holding Company has not granted any options’ SARs under the said Scheme as at 31 March 2024

C.  Fair Valuation:
The detarls of the Fair value of the options / SARs as determined by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants. for the respective plans usmg the Black-Scholes Merton Option Pricmg

Model -
DSL ESOP - 2008
97.00.000 8.80.600 18.00,000
Options Options Options

Regranted Regranted Regranted
1. Exercise price (2) 2408 25485 68 00
2. Expected volanlity * 4297% 47.15% 69.05%
3. Oprion Life (W, ed Average) (in vears) 6 o 6
4. Expected Dividends vield 10.82% 1.10% 101%
5. Risk Free Interest rate 745% 7.56% 5.50%
6. Fair value of the options () 431 130,05 34.58

DSL ESOP - 2009

20.50.000 95.00,000 1,00.,00,000
Options Options Options Regranted
Regranted

I Exercise price (%) 3135 16 219.65
2. Expected volatlity * 48.96% 40 74% 46.70%
3. Expected forfenure percentage on each vesting date Nil Nil Nil
4. Expected dividends vietd 6.86% 16.33% 127%
5. Rusk free mterest rate 8058, 7 45% 6.54%
6. Fair value of the options (2) 939 138 106.31

* The expected volanlity was determined based on listorical volanlity data
DSL ESOP - 2009 DSL-ESBS 2020 DSL-ESBS 2019

98.00,000 93.,00.000 1,04,00,000°
. Options SARs SARs
1. Exercise pnce () 68 250 250
2. Expecied volaulity * 69.05% 76.57% 68.45%
3. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesnng date o Nil Nil
4. Expected dividends vield 1.01% 1.26% 1.71%
5 Risk free interest rate 550% 436% 4.17%
6. Fair value of the opuions (2) 3458 6582 55.49

* The expected volanhty was determined based on listorical volaulity data

Chartered

Accountants




Note -43
Employee stock option schemes: (continued)

DSL_ESOP - 2008 & 2009
18.00,000 and 98.00.000

Options
I. Vesting Date 28-Jun-23 28-Jun-24 28-Jun-25 28-Jun-26 28-Jun-27
2. Exercise price () 30 30 30 30 30
3. Expected volanhity * 70.92% 68.20% 66.66% 65.39% 63.19%
4. Expected forfeiture percentage on each vesting date Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
5. Expected dividends yield 0.66% 0.66% 0.66% 0.66% 0.66%
6. Risk free mterest rate 6.70% 687% 6.97% 7.05% 7.09%
7. Fair value of the options () 15.69 17.00 18.15 19,09 19.69
8. Average Price 17.92
* The expected volatility was determined based on historical volanlity data
D Share based payment expense:
The Company has provided for Share based payments expenses in the Statement of Profit and loss as follows:
For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Share based payments expenses/(reversal)

53.60 (135.65)
53.66 (135.65)

(This space has been mtentionally left blank)
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Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024
(Al amonnts in Rs. Laklis unless otherwise stated)

Note -44
Financial instruments

A

Financial assets and labilities
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as follows

As at As at
Fasticalare Mot 31 March 2024 farch 2023
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 3 6.007.02 2.606.02
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4 3304844
Trade receivables 3 571402
Uther recaivables 5 -
Loans o 34.90
Other financial assets 7 328847
Total 4749185
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade pavables 12 95.94 1942
Borrowings (other than debt secunities but including interest acerued) 3 14,376,000
Finance Lease obligations 14 X251 G906
Onther financial liabilities 15 13,498 99 11,162.99
Total 28.053.44 11.281.47

Fair salucs hicrarchy
A per Ind AS 107, “Financial Instruments. Diselosures'. the fair salues of the financial assets or financial liabilites are defined as the price that would be reserved on ssle of asset or paid to transfer o lihility in an orderly
ents and are grouped into three Levels of & fuir value hicrarchy. The fair

I assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial state
ir value that are cither observable or unobservable The hicrarchy g
ed based on the obscrvability of significant inputs o the measurement, as follows

ion between market partcipants at the measurement date Finane
nputs to valuation techniques that are used o measure
¢ de

hest prionty 1o guoted prices i active markets for identical

r habilities and lowest prionty to unobservable nputs. The three Levels

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusied ) for identical instruments in an active market,
Level 2: Directly (1. as prices) or directly (1. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level | inputs, and

Level 3: Inputs-which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs),

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

wed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 mputs

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which farr value 1s di

As at Asat

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Finan assels
Cash and cash cquivalents b.NI7.02 2.606,02 2.600.02
Bank balances other than cash and cash 2135 33648 44 % 44
cquivalents
Trade receivables 5.714.02 371402
Lo 2.234.90 “H‘NI
Onher financral assets 3.288 47
Total 57.298.19 47.491.85 4749185
Financial liabi
Trade pavables 9594 1942 19.42
Borrowings (other than debt secunties) A &
Finance Lease obliganons 1 99 06 99 06
Other inancial habilines 13,498 99 13,44 116299 11.162 99
Total 2805344 2805344 11.281.47 11.281.47

wables. finance lease obligations and other financial liabilities approximate ther respective carying

The management assessed that fuir values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances. rade receivables. loans, trad
nts. largely due 1o the short-term matunities of these instruments

(This space has been intentionally left Blank




Dhani Stocks Limited
Naotes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2024

(AN amenins in Rs. Lakls unless otherwise

ated)

Note -45
Financial risk management

A

a

Risk Management

The Company s activities expose 1t to market nsk, hquidiy nsk and eredit nisk. The Company s board of
Company’s risk are 1 ged by a treasury department under policies approved by the board of directors
which the entity 1s exposed to and how the entity manages the nsk and the related impact i the financial statements

rectors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company risk management framework. The
he board of directors provides written principles for overall nisk management. This note explains the sources of nisk

Risk Measurement
Credit nisk cash cquivalents. nvestments, Ageing analysis Highly rated bank deposits and diversification of asset base and collaterals taken for assets
. trade receivables and other financial
assets
Liquidity risk Borrowmgs. trade payables and other financial| Cash flow forecasts Committed borrowing and other eredit fucilities
habihities
Market nish - mterest | Bormrowings Sensiuvaty Negotiation of terms that reflect the market factors
rate

In order to avord excessive concentrations of nisk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on mumtaning a diversified portfolio. Idenufied concentrations of credit nisks are controlled and
managed accordingly

Credit risk

Credit Risk anses from the potential that an obligor s either unwilling to perform on an obligation or ts ability 1o perform such obligation is impared resulting in cconomie loss to the company. The Campany’s exposure o
ash and cash equivalents, other hank balances, investments. loan assets, rade recevables and other financial assets. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and ol
Is.

credit risk 15 influenced mamly by
counterpartics and incorporates this information 1nto s credit sk cont

Credit risk management

Based on business environment in which the Company oper:
and manages credit risk based on internal eredit rating svstem. Internal credat rating is performed for each class of financial mstruments with diff
class of financial assets based on the assumptions, mputs and factors specific w the class of finance;

es. a default on o financial assel 1s considered when the counter party fuls te ¢ pavments within the agreed time period as per contract. The Company assesses

nt characteristics The Company assigns the following eredit ratings to cach

Low credit nsk
Munderate cradit nisk
High credit nsk

The company provides for expected credit Joss basad on the following
Nature Assets emered Basis of expected eredit loss

Low eredit nisk Cash and cash equivalents. other bank halances. myvestments, trade recevables. other  [Life time expected credit loss or 12 month expected eredit loss

recervables, loans and other Minancial us

Maoderate eredit nisk Trade recaivables Life e expected credit loss

High credit sk Other receivabl Life time expected credit boss or fully provided for

Assels are witken off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Compuny continues to engage with parties whose halances are witten ofl and attempits to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised m

statement of profit and

Financial sssets that expose the entity to credit rivk®
As at Asat
Particulars :

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

o

[ Low credit risk
Cash and cash equivalents
I3ank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

2,606.02

21.35
Trade receivables
Other rec
Loans

vables

Other fimancial assets

) Moderate eredit risk
Trade recavables o441 O84.52
i) High credit risk
020

Other manaal asscts

* These represent gross carrying values of financial assets. without deduction for expected crodit losses

{This space has been mtentionally icfi hlank )




Dhani Stocks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
hs unless otherwise stated)

Al amaunts in Ks.

Note - 45
Financial risk management (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk related 1o cash and cash equivalents is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifving accounts in differcnt banks across the country

Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk related to Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 1s mar

Trade and Other receivables

Credit risk related to trade receivables is managed by monitoring the recoverability of sueh amounts ¢

Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

d by only accepting highly ruted banks and diversifyin

counts 1 different banks across the country

Other financial assets measured ot amortized cost includes loans. security deposits and others. Credit nisk related to these other financial assets 15 managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts contimuously

by Credit risk exposure
i) Expected credit losses for financial assets

Other financial assets

As at :

Carrying amount net
31 March 2024 Estimated gross Expected eredit Lo

of impairment
carrying amount at default losses 2
- provision

Cash and cash equivalents 600702
BBank balances other than cash and cash equivalents -
Trade receivables ®O44]
Loans .
Other financial pssets 10,20 264363

Carrying amount net

Estimated gross Expected credit > B
As at 31 March 2023 ST e P of impairment
carrying amount at defuult losses o
Cash and cash equivalents 2,606 02 B 2.606.02
Bank balances other than cash cash equivalents 33,648 44 -
Trade receivables 6,698 34 984 52
Other receivables - -
Loans 2,234 90 *
1537

(i) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting period:

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024

Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade receivables Other recelvables D‘“‘;l':'t"l‘:"“""

Loss allowance on 1 April 2022 004,52 13.32

Impatrment loss allowance during the year 8000 a2 12.00

Loss allowanee written back . .

Write - offs/ Reversals - (834.57)

Loss allowance on 31 March 2023 984.52 - 25.32

Impatrmient loss allowance during the year 9].54 2 =

1.oss allowance written back . -

Write - offs/ Reversals (181.63) - (15.12)
894.41 - 10.20

«)  Concentration of trade receivables and other receivables

The Company carries on the business as stock broker on the Natonal Stock Fxchange of India Limited ¢'NSE) and the BSE Limited ¢BSE” ) and commaodities broker on Mulu Commuxdity Exch

depository participants and renders other related anallary services. The Company”s outstanding receivables are for stock /commexdity broking on exchanges and deposttory participants. Loans and other financial assets majorly

sents margin funding loans and deposits given for business purposes

f India Limited ("MCX"),
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Note - 45
Financial risk management (continued)
B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in mectimg the obligations associated with its fin
s possible, that it will have sufficrent liquidaty to meeet its abilities when they are

managing liquidity is lo ensure as

cial liabilitics that are settled by deliverin

cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to

The Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Managenent monitors the Company’s liquidity positions (also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and

cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company also takes into account liquidity of the market in which the entity operates

(iy  Financing arrangements

The Company had aceess o the following funding facilities

As at 31 March 2024 Total facility Drawn Undrawn
- Expiring within one vear 10,000,00 - 10,000,000
- Expiring bevond one vear 25,000.00 = 25,000.00
Total 35.000.00 . 35.000.00
As at 31 March 2023 Total facility Drawn Undrawn
- Expinng within one year 400 - 400,00
- Expining bevond one year 25.000.00 - 25.000.00
Total 25,400.00 E 25.400.00
(i) Maturities of financial assets and liubilitics

The tables below analyse the Company financial assets and liabilities mto relevant matunty groupmgs based on their contractual matunties
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
Asat 31 March 2024 Lesrdhan 1-3 years Maredhal Total

I year - 3 vears
Non-derivatives
Cash and cash equivalents 037,02 2 s HO07 02
Bank halances other cash and cash equivalents ]
Trade receivables -
Loans & 7.594.15
Onther finuncial asscts 415.31 265383
Total undiscounted financial assets - 415.31 58.202.80
Non-derivatives
I'rade payables 95,94 - E 9594
Borrowings other tham debt securitics 14, . E
Finance |ease obligations 19.25
Onher fmancial habilines 13,498 99 -
Total undiscounted financial labilities 27.990.18 47.74 28.053.44
Net undiscounted financial assets/(liabilities) 29.,797.31 H7.74) e J0.149.36
A« at 31 March 2023 Less than 1-3 years Mors:thian Total

1 vear = 3vears
Non-derivatives
Cash and cash equivalents - =
Bank halances other cash and cash equivalents - - 330484
Trade receivables - - 6,098 54
Loans 3 E
Other financial assets 231946 - 994 33
Total undiscounted financial assets 47.507.36 - 994.33
Non-derivatives
Irade payables 19.42 - 19.42
Finance [ease obligations 1655 66 94 G0
Other financial habilines 11.162.99 = - 1116299
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 11.198.96 15.52 1128147
Net undiscounted financial assets/{liabilities) 36.308.40 97881 37.220.22
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Note - 45
Financial risk management (continued)

€) Market risk

a) Foreign currency rish
The Company has not entered mto any foreign currency transactions and is not exposed to foreign exchange nsk arising from recognised assets and habiliies denominated i a currency that 1s not the functional currency of the
Company. The Company did not have any foreign currency recenvables and payables as at 31 March 2024 (Previous vear Rs Nil)

by Interest rate risk

i) Liabilities
The Company’s policy is to minmmise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31 March 2024, the Company 1s not exposed to changes in market interest rates
Interest rate visk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to mterest rate risk
Particulars At Asat

31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
Variable rate liabilities 2 E
Fixed rate liabilities
Borrowings (other than debt secunities)
Total = E
Rensiivity
Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss in inferest rates
Asat As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Interest sensitivity
Interest rates = inercase by 0.50% . i
Interest rates — decrease by U 30% 5

i) Assets
The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fived rae deposits. They are therefore not subject 1o interest rate risk as defined i Ind AS 107, since neither the earrving amount nor the future cash Jows will
Nuctuate because of a change i market interest rates.

©) Price risk

i) Exposure
As at 31 March 2024 (Previous vear Rs. Nilb. the Company had no mvestments in Quoted Equity Instruments subject to price nisk

Note - 46

Capital management

The Company s capital management objectives are
- o ensire the Company’s abtlity o continue as a gong concern

- to comply with externally imposad capital requirements

cholders
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrving amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet

- to provide an adequate return to sha

ng structure while avoiding exeessive leverage. This takes into account the subordination levels of the Company’s

Management assesses the Company s capital requirements in order 1o maintun an efficient overall fi
various classes of debt. The Company manages the copital structure and makes adjustments to it the light of changes in economic condions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets. In order W mamtan of adjust
e deht

the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders. rewrn capital to sharcholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reds

As at As ut
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Particulars

Net debt*

Total equity 40,635 86

Net debt to equity ratio

* Net debt includes horrowings other than debt securities + interest acerued - cash and cash cquivalents.
( This space has been mientionally left blank)

Chartered O

—
Accountants | »




Dhani Stecks Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 Murch 2024
A amonnes in Rs. Lakhs uniess otherwise stated)

Note - 47
Leases:

The Company has lease contracts for vanous office premises used in its operations. The Company“s obligations under ns leases are secured by the lessor’s mtle 1o the leased assets. Generally. the Company 15 restnicted from

assigning and subleasing the leased assets

The Company also has certain leases of office premises with lease terms of

Leases are shown as follows in the Company's balance sheet and Statement of profit and loss.

nonths or less. The Company applies the “short-term leas

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements dunng the period

Following are the changes in the carrving value of right of use assets

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets ("Rol Assets™) for the year ended 31 March 2024;

" recognition exemplions for these leases

Asat As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance al the begmamg of the year 90,73 110 50
Additions during the year - -
Derecogmtion of Roll asset = D
Amortisation expense® (1983 (037
Amortisation adjustment - -
Closing balance at the end of year T0.90 .73
*The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets 1s meluded under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
The follow ing is the movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2024:

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance at the begmning of the ¥ 99,06 11322
Additions during the vea - -
Derecognition of lease liabilitics . <
Finance cost acerued during the period 7.50
Pavment of lease habilities (24.05)) (22.91)
Closing balance at the end of year 8251 49,06

The following is the income from subleasing right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March 202

4

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease labilities as at 31 March 2024 on an undiscounted basis:

Asat

As at

Partic 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within One vear 19
Ume to Five vears 63 20

More than Five vears

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases is Rs 12,37 lakh (previous vear Rs 8 39 lakh) for the year ended 31 March 2024

has been imentiemally feft blank)
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Note - 48
Maturity analysis of assets and

es

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed sccording to when they are expeeted 1 be recoverad or settled

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Within 12 months

After 12 months

Within 12 months

After 12 months

(@ Cash and cash equivalents 600702 - 2.606.02 -
(L] Bank balance other
than cash and cash 3412133 - 3364844 -
) Receivables
(1) Trade receivables 6,932.04 - 5714.02 =
(11} Other receivables - - - -
(6] Loans 7.594 - 2,234.90 -
e) Ohher financial assets 223851 40511 946 969,01
56,893.08 40511 46,522.84 969.01
Non-financial assets
{a) Current tax assets (net) = - X783
thy Deferred tax assets net) - - 85413
«w) Property, plant and cquipment = - 3603
wh Intangible assets under development - - - DN}
(©) Other intangible assets - 1.862 35 -335.32
if} Right of ssels 70.90 W3
) Other non-financial assets 21758 1.701.54 1.700.00
217.5% 542274 54934
TOTAL ASSETS S7,010.66 5.827.85 46.682.35 6.462.05
Financial liabilities
(ay Pavables
Trade pavables
) total 7481 - - 3
vutstanding dues of
i) total 2113 - 19.42
outstanding dues of
reditors other then
thy Borrowmas (other than debt secunities) 14.376.00 5 = =
(19} Finance Lease obligations 19.25 63.26 16.55 82.51
td Other fimancial liabilites 13498 99 - 11.162.99 -
27.990.18 63.26 11.198.96 82.51
Non-financial Liabilities
tu) Current tax labilities (nety 43843 - -
iy Provisions 34.77 39800
(c) Other non-financial liabili 574.33 - 616.72 Z
1.047.58 S15.04 829.07 398.00
TOTAL LIABILITIES 29.037.73 S78.30 12.,028.03 480.51

(This space has been irtentionally left blunk:
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Note -49
In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be eredited 1o the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 31 March 2024 (Previous vear - Rs. Nil)
Note - 50

Analytical Ratios

Addional regulatory information required under WB(xvi) of Division 111 of Schedule 11t the Act, as amended. disclosure of ratios, is not applicable 1o the Company as 1t 15 in the broking business and not an NBFC registered under

on 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

Note - 51

Year ended March 31. 2024: In secordance with the provisions of section 133 of the Companies Act 2013. the Company was w spend a sum of Rs. 3593 lakhs towards CSR activities during the year ended 31 March 2024, During
the vear ended March 31, 2024, the Company had contributed Rs, 73 lakhs, being the amount required to be spent by the Company towards Corporate Social Responsibility expenses to a Trust, known as Knshnavanti Memorial
Educational Trust. The said amount was not utilised/ spent for the intended CSR activities by the trust till March 31, 2024, The Trust has smee spent the amount of contribution made by the Company towards Promotion of education
and scholarship to students, prior to the approval of these financial statements

ordance with the provisions of scction 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company was to spend a sum of Rs. 18.37 lakhs towards CSR activities during the vear ended 31 March 2023, During
ompany had contributed Rs. 18 37 lakhs. being the amount required 1o be spent by the Company towards Corporate Social Responsibility expenses to a Trust, known as Indjabulls Foundation trust
we spent the amount of contribution made by the Company towards Promotion of Education including Scholarship

Year ended March 31, 2023 In
the vear ended March 31, 2023 the
The said amount was utilised’ spent for the intended CSR activitics by the trust till March 31, 2024 The Trust has
1o Students

Note - 52
(11 The Company has not received any funds from any personts) or entityiies), including forcign entities (Funding Party ) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

ta) direetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Heneficiaties) or
(h} provide any guarantee, secunty or the hike to or on behalf of the Ulumate Beneficuries

(1) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds from any personts) or entity(ies). including foreign entities  Intermediaries) wath the understanding iwhether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Intermediaries shall,
ta}directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Uhm

by provide any guarantes, secunty or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficianies

te Beneficianiesi or

Note - 53
The Company

< niot been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender during the vear and previous vear

Note - 54

The Company has not entered mtw any transactions with compames struek off under section 248 of the Companies Act. 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the vear ended March 31. 2024 and March 31, 2023

Note - 55

There are no charges or satisfaction required 1o be registered by the Company with Registrar of Companies by the Company during the vear except as follows

Brief Description of Location  of  the(Due date of|Perind  (months) by which| Reason for delay in registration
such  charge had  to be
registered

the charge Registrar registration
Registrar of

Companies, NCT  of 06-Dec
Delhi and Harvana

Overdraft against fixed
deposits

16 The Company will regaster the required charge onee disbursal of the
facility is taken

- 586

The Company did not enter mto any tr; ar (Previous year rs. Nil) in the lax assessments under the Income

ons which are not recorded in the books of aecounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as mcome during the »

Tax Act, 1961

Note - 57
The Company has not traded or invested m erypto curreney o virual curreney during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

(This space has been intentionally Jeft hlanki
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Note - 58
Prior year figures have been regrouped, wherever necessary, to conform to the current year presentation.

For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of the Bgakd of Direcgors \
Chartered Accountants
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